

THE CONSTITUTION AND RULES

OF

TABLE TENNIS SOUTH CANTERBURY

ASSOCIATION INCORPORATED

CONSTITUTION & RULES OF TABLE TENNIS SOUTH CANTERBURY ASSOCIATION INCORPORATED

1. NAME

The name of the Association shall be “Table Tennis South Canterbury Association Incorporated” hereinafter referred to as “TTSCA”

2. REGISTRATION

The TTSCA shall be registered under the “Incorporated Societies Act 1908”.

3. REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the TTSCA shall be at such place as the Executive Committee of the TTSCA may from time to time determine

4. OBJECTS

The objects of the TTSCA are to:

- a) Encourage, foster, promote, control, organise, develop and administer the playing of table tennis and official tournaments in the area controlled by TTSCA, including the playing of Inter-club and Inter-association matches, individual championships, tournaments and other contests
- b) Prescribe, maintain and uphold the laws for playing of table tennis in that area, including a doping policy and procedures to deal with breaches of that policy
- c) Affiliate with Table Tennis New Zealand Incorporated and, as may be determined from time to time by the Executive Committee, any other organisation
- d) Generally do all things whatsoever for the benefit of table tennis which may be deemed expedient or which may be directly or indirectly incidental or ancillary to the other objects of TTSCA provided however that the foregoing objects shall in no way limit the rights and powers conferred upon Societies incorporated under the Incorporated Societies Act 1908 and its amendments

5. POWERS

- 1) The powers of the TTSCA include the following:
 - a) To define the boundaries within which affiliated Sub-Associations shall from time to time operate
 - b) Employ the funds of TTSCA in such manner as is deemed by the Executive Committee in the best interests of table tennis
 - c) Borrow monies for the purpose of carrying out the objects of the TTSCA
 - d) Invest monies of the TTSCA upon such securities and upon such terms and conditions as may be determined from time to time by the Executive Committee

- e) To purchase, lease, hire or otherwise acquire and hold real and personal property as the Executive Committee considers necessary or convenient to the attainment of any of the foregoing objectives
 - f) Erect, maintain, alter or repair any building, structure or other property required for the purposes of TTSCA
 - g) To sell, lease, mortgage, change or otherwise dispose of any real and personal property as the Executive Committee may from time to time think necessary and proper
 - h) Raise monies by subscriptions, levies, affiliation fees, donations or otherwise
 - i) Advance or lend monies to any member organisation either with or without security and upon such terms and conditions as deemed by the Executive Committee and approved at a special general meeting as being proper and expedient
 - j) To employ, remove or suspend officers and employees and negotiate payment of any remuneration
 - k) To settle questions or disputes on any matters relating to table tennis and to be the court of appeal for any matters which may be submitted to the association for its adjudication by any club or Sub-Association
 - l) Such other powers as may be necessary or desirable to further the objects of TTSCA
- 2) These powers are to exercised by the Executive Committee on behalf of TTSCA

6. COMMON SEAL

The Common Seal of the TTSCA shall be held in the custody of the Secretary who shall affix it to such documents as the Executive Committee may from time to time direct and shall be attested by any two Executive Committee members. A record of every document to which the seal is affixed shall be kept.

7. MEMBERSHIP

- a) The membership of TTSCA shall comprise of:
 - i. Any club or organisation (hereafter referred to as “**member clubs**”) whose objectives include the playing of the sport of table tennis and who are now or may be hereafter affiliated to the Association
 - ii. Any sub-association – being an association of clubs approved as a sub-association by the Executive Committee
 - iii. Groupings of individual players (hereafter referred to as “**approved teams**”) forming approved teams for purposes of interclub competition
 - iv. Such of the officers and members of the Executive Committee not already members by virtue of the provision of sub-clauses i) – iii)
 - v. Existing life members together with all future life members elected as hereinafter provided
 - vi. Members deemed by the TTSCA Executive Committee as worthy of and having been conferred as having Honorary membership status

- vii. Non interclub players receiving training or participating in TTSCA events who have paid an individual member affiliation fee as set down by the Executive Committee
- b) Affiliation
- i. Any sub-association or club wishing to affiliate to the Association shall make written application to the Secretary of the Association supplying a copy of its rules, the name of its Secretary, the number of clubs, terms, tables and location of rooms along with any other requested information. The Executive Committee shall be empowered to accept or reject such application with the decision made by majority vote, such vote to be by ballot if called for
 - ii. The number of playing members required within a club wishing to affiliate with the Association shall be at the discretion of the Executive Committee
 - iii. The number of clubs within sub-associations wishing to affiliate to the Association shall be at the discretion of the Executive Committee
- c) The Secretary of each affiliated sub-association or club shall annually, as soon as practicable after its Annual General Meeting, furnish to the Secretary of the Association for the purposes of the Register of Members, a list of the names, addresses, telephone numbers and dates of birth of all members of such sub-association or club and shall notify the Secretary of the Association of any additions or removals that occur during the year
- d) A register of sub-associations, member clubs and approved teams of players for interclub purposes shall be maintained

8. MEMBERSHIP – OBLIGATIONS AND MISCONDUCT

- a) All members of the Executive Committee, sub-associations, member clubs and approved teams for interclub purposes, life and honorary members shall comply with the provisions of these rules and with any rules or regulations lawfully made under the authority of these rules, and with any lawful direction given by the TTSCA or its Executive Committee
- b) Specific By-laws, policies or regulations regarding player conduct and the control and/or administration of the game will from time to time be issued by the Executive Committee and held in a register by the Secretary.
- c) No sub-association, member club, approved team or member shall be suspended or expelled without first being summoned before a meeting of the Executive Committee to explain such action, nor unless the resolution of such suspension or expulsion shall be passed by a majority vote of the votes cast thereon
- d) In all cases of alleged misconduct by a sub-association, member club, approved team or member an enquiry shall be held by the TTSCA Executive Committee which may impose such penalties, including reprimands, suspension or expulsion as it may deem fit and the ruling of the Executive Committee shall be observed by the sub-association, member club, approved

team or member. The Executive Committee may take any reasonable steps and powers in any enquiry into a case of alleged misconduct.

- e) For the purposes of Clause 8 d) 'misconduct' means:
 - i. Conduct involving dishonesty in connection with any table tennis match, tournament or competition, or in the administration of the game of table tennis, or
 - ii. Conduct which is otherwise considered to bring the sport of table tennis or the name of TTSCA into disrepute, or
 - iii. Conduct in breach of any player Code of Conduct as issued by the Executive Committee from time to time.
- f) Any rule made by a sub-association, member club, approved team or member which conflicts with this Constitution or any other regulations of TTSCA shall be void to the extent of the conflict
- g) In all cases of proven doping infractions of the NZTTA doping policy, the TTSCA Executive Committee shall impose such penalty as it may deem fit
- h) Any complaints shall be in writing and addressed to the Secretary

9. APPEAL PROCEDURES

- a) Except for breaches of the TTSCA sports drug policy, where the decision of the Executive Committee shall be final, there shall be a right of appeal against the decisions of the TTSCA Executive Committee. Such appeal shall be in writing to the Secretary within 28 days of the decision. Such appeal shall be heard by a referee or tribunal. The Secretary is to provide the appellant with seven days notice of the meeting time and place together with details of the referee or tribunal.
- b) If the referee or tribunal is unacceptable to the appellant they have a further seven days to lodge their disagreement. In the event of the parties concerned not being able to agree on a referee or tribunal such referee or tribunal shall be appointed by the Secretary and a new meeting time set within a further seven days.
- c) Pending the decision of any appeal any disciplinary action taken shall be operative unless otherwise directed.

10. SUBSCRIPTIONS, LEVIES AND OTHER FEES

- a) The fees and subscriptions payable by sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams or members affiliated to the Association shall be fixed at the Annual General Meeting for the ensuing year by the Executive Committee which may also provide the date or dates by which such fees and subscriptions are to be paid.
- b) Levies and other fees in respect of the provision of coaching sessions, hire/use of tables or for participation in any activity will be set from time to time by the Executive Committee. Such levies or other fees will be payable in accordance with any associated payment timetable
- c) The Executive Committee can approve the hire of the TTSCA stadium to other organisations, groups or individuals as deemed appropriate with fees to be determined from time to time by the Executive Committee

11. CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP

Any sub-association, member club, approved team or member shall cease to be affiliated to TTSCA in the event of:

- a) By the tendering of its/there resignation to the Executive Committee in writing
- b) Where the Executive Committee resolves it is satisfied that the sub-association, member club, approved team or member no longer meets the criteria for affiliation, or has otherwise found to have breached the TTSCA rules or regulations warranting suspension or expulsion providing in the case of expulsion that:
 - i. A special general meeting is called which the sub-association, member club, approved team or member to be expelled is invited to attend and defend themselves or submit written grounds to refute the allegations and
 - ii. A resolution expelling the sub-association, member club, approved team or member be carried by majority vote of the votes cast at a Special General Meeting and
 - iii. The sub-association, member club, approved team or member is informed in writing of the outcome of the Special General Meeting within 14 days of that meeting
- c) In the case of a sub-association, member club, approved team or member by ceasing to exist
- d) Where the sub-association, member club, approved team or member has not paid their subscription, affiliation or other levies, or is in arrears of payment of any sum previously agreed upon, within a reasonable period as subscribed by the Executive Committee

Any monies owing and unpaid at the time of cessation by any sub-association, member club, approved team or member will remain liable and subject to collection and enforcement.

12. LIFE MEMBERSHIP

At the Annual General Meeting of the Association any person who has rendered significant special services to the TTSCA or to the sport of table tennis in New Zealand, may be elected an Honorary life member of TTSCA by a simple majority of votes cast. Nominations in writing shall be proposed and seconded by two members of the Executive Committee and must be received by the Secretary not less than 14 days prior to the meeting at which the nomination is to be considered. Notice of the proposal to elect such person shall be contained in the notice of the meeting. Life members shall be entitled to speak and vote at any General Meeting.

13. MEETINGS

13.1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- a) The financial year of the Association shall end on the 31st December in each year and the Annual General Meeting of the TTSCA shall be held no later than

the 31st March each year on a date to be determined by the Executive Committee

- b) Not later than 28 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting every sub-association, member club, approved team, member, life member and Executive Committee member shall be notified by the Secretary of the time, date and place of the meeting.
- c) The sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams, members, life members and Executive Committee members shall give notice in writing of any business to be discussed or resolutions to be considered at any Annual General Meeting no later than 14 days before the date of such meeting but any additional business may be accepted for discussion at the discretion of the chairperson.
- d) Nominations for the Officers and Executive Committee of TTSCA shall be forwarded to the Association Secretary at least 14 days before the date set down for the Annual General Meeting of TTSCA. All nominations shall be signed by the nominee proposer and seconder. If there are insufficient nominations to fill any TTSCA position/s, nominations from the floor to fill the vacancies shall be accepted if seconded, and voted upon if required.
- e) Not later than 7 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting every Officer, member club, life member and Executive Committee member shall be sent
 - i. A copy of the Annual Report, Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Accounts for the previous year
 - ii. A schedule of Business in accordance with 13.1 (c) and (d) and 13.2

13.2 BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The business of the Annual General Meeting shall include:

- a) Roll call of delegates and apologies
- b) Confirmation of, and matters arising from, the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting and any subsequent Special General Meetings
- c) Receipt and adoption of the Annual Report
- d) Receipt and adoption of the Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Accounts
- e) Election of Patron, Officers and Executive Committee
- f) Appointment of an Auditor
- g) Election of life members (if any)
- h) Consideration of resolutions of which notice has been given
- i) Approval of honoraria payable to eligible Executive Committee members for the previous financial year
- j) Setting of affiliation fees for current financial year
- k) Transaction of any general business of which due notice has been given or has been accepted at the discretion of the chairperson

13.3 SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

- a) A Special General Meeting of the Association shall be called by the Secretary:
 - i. Upon instructions from the Executive Committee, or

- ii. Upon receipt of a requisition setting forth the objects of the meeting, signed by the Secretaries of not less than 3 affiliated clubs, sub-associations or Captains of approved team groups
- b) Such special meetings shall be convened within 30 days of receiving the meeting request or instruction
- c) Notice of the meeting shall be notified to every officer, member club, life member and sub-association Secretary not less than 14 days before the meeting. Such notice shall state the purpose for which the special general meeting is to be called and no other matter shall be considered at the meeting.
- d) The Secretary of each affiliated sub-association or club shall be responsible for notifying the members and delegates of such sub-association or club of such special general meeting
- e) The procedure to be adopted for the conduct of special meetings shall be in accordance with that stipulated for the Annual General Meeting.
- f) Any person disobeying the ruling of the chair may be suspended for the period of the meeting by a resolution requiring a majority vote

14. DELEGATES AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Any general meeting of the TTSCA shall consist of:

- a) The members of the Association through their respective sub-associations, member clubs and approved teams shall be entitled to representation by delegates as follows:
 - i. Each sub-association affiliated to the Associations shall be entitled to one delegate for every team, up to a maximum of three delegates, entered into that sub-associations current years interclub competition
 - ii. Each member club and approved team/team group affiliated to the Association shall be entitled to one delegate for each team entered into the current years interclub competition
 - iii. Any newly affiliated sub-association or member club, in the year of its affiliation, shall be entitled to one delegate

Such delegates shall exercise for and on behalf of such sub-associations, member clubs or approved teams all rights, powers and privileges relating to or enjoyed by such sub-associations or member clubs or approved teams as members of the Association

The names of all delegates must be in writing and signed either by the Secretary of the sub-association, or member club concerned or by the team captain of any approved team and shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Association at least one week prior to any commencement of any general meeting.

No delegate may at the same time represent more than one sub-association, member club or approved team. Each delegate must be a member of the sub-association, member club or approved team such delegate represents

- b) Officers and Executive Committee members
- c) Life Members

15. QUORUM

- a) The quorum for the Annual General Meeting and all other General Meetings shall be five persons present as Committee Members or Delegates. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and if they be absent the meeting shall elect its own Chairperson. The Chairperson of any meeting shall have a deliberative and a casting vote.
- b) No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless a quorum of members is present at the meeting. If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a meeting a quorum is not present the meeting shall be dissolved. The adjourned meeting shall be called for a future time and place but no later than 14 days from the dissolved meeting. If at such an adjourned meeting a quorum is not present those members present shall be a quorum and may transact the business for which the meeting was called.

16. VOTING

- a) The business of TTSCA submitted at any General Meeting of the Association, shall be decided, in the first instance by voices, and when doubtful, by a show of hands, and in the case of an equality of votes the President shall both on a show of hands and at a poll, have a casting vote in addition to the vote to which they may be entitled as a member. At any meeting as aforesaid, unless a poll is demanded by the President or at least three members present thereat, a declaration by the President that a resolution has been carried by a particular or lost or not carried by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the appropriate minute book shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour or against such resolution. If a poll is demanded as aforesaid it shall be taken in such manner and at such time and place as the President of the meeting may direct and the result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. A demand for a poll may be withdrawn.
- b) No resolution may be voted upon at a General Meeting unless it has been moved and seconded by eligible voters
- c) Except where alternative arrangements have been agreed to by the Executive Committee no sub-association, member club or approved team shall be entitled to vote at any General Meeting unless all sums presently payable by it in respect of subscriptions, fees and other amounts due to TTSCA have been paid
- d) At a General Meeting of the Association the following persons shall have one vote each:
 - i. Each delegate of a sub-association, member club or approved team as set forth in rule 14. (a)
 - ii. Each officer and member of the Executive Committee as set forth in rule 14. (b)
 - iii. Each life member of the Association as set forth in rule 14. (c)

PROVIDED THAT no person other than the President (or in their absence the meeting chairperson), shall have or be entitled to exercise more than one vote

Votes must be made in person and not by proxy. Except as expressly hereinbefore in this rule set forth no members shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Association.

- e) All members of affiliated sub-associations, clubs and approved teams of the TTSCA may attend any General Meeting of the Association, and may be granted permission to speak, but may not vote.
- f) Individual membership as conferred under clause 7 (a) vii shall be entitled to attend any General Meeting of the Association, and may be granted permission to speak, but may not vote.

17. AUDIT

- a) At the Annual General Meeting of the Association an Auditor shall be appointed to audit the accounts of the Association and to certify the Annual Balance Sheet. In the event of the Auditor being unable to act the Executive Committee shall have the power to appoint another in their stead
- b) No person shall be elected to hold office as Auditor who is an Officer of the Association or a member of the Executive Committee

18. OFFICERS

The officers of the Association shall consist of:

- a) President
- b) Vice President
- c) Secretary
- d) Treasurer

Nominations for President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer shall be in the hands of the Secretary not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the date appointed for the Annual General Meeting. All nominations shall be signed by the nominee and by a proposer and seconder. If no nominations are received prior to the Annual General Meeting nominations may be taken from the floor at the discretion of the Chairperson. The officers shall be elected annually and their term shall run to the end of the next Annual General Meeting.

19. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

- a) The President shall preside at all General Meetings of the Association. The President shall oversee the general operation of TTSCA, be its spokesperson on relevant issues or the promotion of table tennis to the media and public, to be the TTSCA representative at TTNZ, to chair the Executive Committee and is an ex-officio member of all committees.
- b) The Vice President shall carry out the duties of the President when the President is absent or unavailable
- c) The Secretary shall arrange committee meetings and venues, keep the minutes, attend to correspondence, prepare the Annual Report, keep all records including all registers of sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams and

members and attend to the usual secretarial business. The Secretary shall also attend to the filing of the Statement of Accounts with the Registrar of Incorporated Societies, hold the Seal in their custody and be the liaison person between TTSCA and TTNZ on administrative matters.

- d) The Treasurer shall receive all monies due to the Association and pay all accounts passed by the Executive Committee, to prepare an overall budget and monitor monthly income and expenditure, keeping a correct account of the monthly income and expenditure and assets and liabilities in books provided for that purpose, presenting financial reports at Executive Committee meetings, and shall submit the audited annual accounts to the Annual General Meeting.

20. FINANCE AND ANNUAL REPORT

- a) The financial year of TTSCA shall close on the 31st December each year
- b) All monies received shall be paid to the credit of TTSCA at a bank or banks as determined by the Executive Committee
- c) The Executive Committee shall appoint three members of the committee, including the Treasurer, to have signing authority on the account or accounts
- d) The payment of all accounts shall be signed or overseen by any two of the persons authorised to do so by the Executive Committee, and all accounts for payment shall be approved by the Executive Committee
- e) The Annual Accounts shall be audited by an Auditor, appointed at the Annual General Meeting, and who shall not hold any other office in TTSCA
- f) A report of the year's activities together with the audited Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account shall be prepared by the Treasurer for presentation at the Annual General Meeting.
- g) All financial records shall be open to inspection by the Auditor and any officer of TTSCA at all times, and by any other Executive Committee member under conditions that the Executive Committee shall determine from time to time.

21. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- a) The affairs of the Association shall be administered by an Executive Committee which shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and up to 8 other members.
- b) In addition, the President or Chairperson of any sub-association that is affiliated to TTSCA will be that sub-association's permanent representative on the Executive Committee.
- c) The Executive Committee shall hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting when they shall retire from office but shall be eligible for re-election.
- d) No more than three members from the same affiliated member club or approved team grouping may hold office as Committee Members on the Executive Committee.
- e) No more than two members from the same affiliated member club or approved team grouping can serve as Office Bearers on the Executive Committee.
- f) No more than two members from any affiliated sub-association may hold office on the Executive Committee.

- g) A minimum of five, including any two of the Officers, shall form a quorum at meetings of the Executive Committee. No proxies shall be allowed.
- h) Any poll taken at a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes cast by the members present. In the case of a tie the President shall have a casting vote in addition to a deliberative vote.
- i) If neither the President nor the Vice President is available then the members attending such meeting shall elect a Chairperson.
- j) Any Executive Committee member who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings of the Executive Committee without leave of absence may forfeit their seat on the Executive Committee.
- k) The Executive Committee shall have the power to fill any vacancies, either unfilled at the time of the previous Annual General Meeting or arising during the year, of any officer or other member of the Executive Committee. Such replacements shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting.

22. FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the governance for table tennis in the area controlled by the TTSCA, to carry out the aims and objectives of the TTSCA, and shall have the following functions and powers to those provided for elsewhere in these rules:

- a) To control the finances of the Association
- b) To formulate, adopt and monitor any strategic and annual plan and financial budget
- c) To make, repeal and amend any rules (other than this document), by-laws or regulations for the management and control of table tennis within the TTSCA area providing that all sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams and members are kept informed of the new or amended rules or regulations
- d) To appoint any sub-committees and to delegate them such powers and responsibilities as the Executive Committee deems appropriate
- e) To enter into employment contracts on such terms and conditions as the Executive Committee shall think and to adopt clearly defined delegations of authority from the Executive Committee to those appointees
- f) To enlist or co-opt any person(s) for any special purposes
- g) To impose any penalty upon any sub-association, member club, approved team or member found guilty of breaching any rule, by-law or regulation of the TTSCA, or by actions that bring the sport into disrepute
- h) To determine the process to apply in respect of the selection and appointment of:
 - Sub-Committees
 - Managers, Coaches, Selectors and Team Captains
 - Other positions as required
- i) To determine any fees, levies or other monies payable by sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams or members each year
- j) The jurisdiction to hear and determine any disputes involving sub-associations, member clubs, approved teams or members and to determine and regulate the procedure and format of any hearing held to resolve such a dispute

- k) To enter into any Trust Deed, contracts of lease, insurance, sponsorship or other contracts as deemed appropriate to carry out the objects of the TTSCA
- l) To award and confer the status of honorary member(s) that it considers as being deserving of such recognition
- m) Any other powers as may be necessary or desirable to further the objects of the TTSCA

23. RULES OF THE GAME

TTSCA shall adopt the rules of the game as sanctioned by the sport's national governing body.

24. ALTERATION TO THE CONSTITUTION

- a) These rules may be amended, repealed or replaced by a resolution passed by a majority vote at a General Meeting. Notice of the proposed alteration shall be given to the Secretary at least 14 days prior to the date of the General Meeting at which it is intended to propose the alteration. Notice shall be given of the proposed resolution in accordance with the rules for General Meetings.
- b) No addition to or alteration of the non-profit aims, personal benefits clause or the winding up clause shall be approved without the approval of the Inland Revenue Department
- c) The provision and effect of this clause shall not be removed from this document and shall be included and implied into any document replacing this document.

25. INDEMNITY

Every Executive Committee member of the TTSCA who does any act in pursuance or intended pursuance of any provision of these rules or any regulations made there under in General Meeting or of the Executive Committee shall be indemnified by the TTSCA against all losses and expenses incurred by them in connection with the discharge of their duties, unless the act was done in bad faith or without reasonable care.

26. INTERPRETATION OF THE RULES

- a) In the event of any dispute over the interpretation of these rules or any question arising in connection with the administration of table tennis in the area which is not provided for in these rules, that question shall be decided by the Executive Committee.
- b) Any such decision shall be recorded in the minutes of the Executive Committee, and shall remain in force until it is amended or revoked by the Executive Committee or by a resolution passed at a General Meeting.
- c) All members of the Association and every member of each sub-association, member club or approved team affiliated to TTSCA shall be bound by the Association's rules and by the by-laws of the Executive Committee.

27. PERSONAL BENEFITS CLAUSE

- a) No member of the organisation or any person associated with a member shall participate in or materially influence any decision made by the organisation in respect of the payment to or on behalf of that member or associated person of any income, benefit or advantage whatsoever.
- b) Any such income paid will be reasonable and relevant to that which would be paid in an arms length transaction (being the open market value). The provision and effect of this clause shall not be removed from this document and shall be included and implied into any document replacing this document

28. WINDING UP

- a) The TTSCA may be wound up in terms of Section 24 of “The Incorporated Societies Act 1908” provided that the resolution requiring the Association to be wound up must be passed and confirmed by a majority of the members present at the respective meetings referred to in the said section
- b) If upon the winding up or the dissolution of TTSCA there remains under the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever the same shall not be paid to or distributed among the members of the organisation, but shall be given or transferred to some other organisation or body having objects of the first organisation, or to some other charitable organisation or purpose, within New Zealand
- c) The distribution in terms of the above will be decided at a Special General Meeting.

29. REVOCATION OF PREVIOUS RULES

These rules are in substitute for all previous rules of the Association, which previous rules are hereby revoked.